
                                            

 

             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
PROPERTY AND LIABILITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
MARCH 17, 2022 

10:30 A.M. 
  

AGENDA 

  

 
 I.  Consent Agenda 

A.  Approval of Minutes for February 2022 Board of Directors Meeting                                    Nick Kouklis 
      
B.  Approval of Payment of Student Insurance Claims in the Amount of $27,467.08                     Nick Kouklis 
     and Tackle Football Claims in the Amount of $2,811.74 for the Month of February 2022  
 
  Moved____________________2nd_____________________ 
 
  Yes_____No______Abstain______Roll Call Vote__________    
 
 
 II. Public Comment     
 
 
 
 
 

            
 
 

1



 
             
 
  

District File Number Claimant 

Upland Unified School District 
By Ty Taylor 2020038645 T.C. 

L-BI 

Fruitvale School District 
By Ryan Bourget 2021039837 Property 

Caruthers Unified School 
District 

By Ryan Bourget 
2021040229 Property 

General Shafter 
By Ryan Bourget 2021040360 Property 

Delhi Unified School District 
By Roxann Dailey-Webb 2022042304 Auto 

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

IV.   Reconvene To Open Session 
 
A.   Reports from Closed Session, if Required    
         
         
          
 
 

III.  Closed Session- Property and Liability Claims 
 
The board may be required to adjourn to closed session for discussion of matters regarding a claim for 
the payment of tort liability losses, public liability losses, or workers’ compensation liability, authorized 
by Government Code 54956.95. 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
            
            
            
          
 
 
 
 

2



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V.   Action Items 

A.    Report of Property and Liability Claims in the Amount of $391,272.53                                  Robert Kretzmer 
        for the Month of February 2022 and Ratification of Payment of this Amount 
         
               Moved_______________________2nd_____________________ 
 
  Yes______No______Abstain______Roll Call Vote____________ 
 
 
B.    Financial Report – Presentation of Financial Statements for the Month                                 Kim Sloan 
        of February 2022 Will Be Submitted for Approval 
 

Moved_______________________2nd_____________________ 
 
Yes______No______Abstain______Roll Call Vote____________ 

 
 
C.    Request Approval of the 2022-2023 Rates             Kim Sloan 
 

Moved_______________________2nd_____________________ 
 
Yes______No______Abstain______Roll Call Vote____________ 

 

D.    Request Approval of the School Connected Coverage for 2022-2023                       Robert Kretzmer 
          
              Moved_______________________2nd_____________________ 

 
Yes______No______Abstain______Roll Call Vote____________ 

 

 

VI.   Information and Discussion Items 

A.     Discussion on Duties of a District Upon Notice of Potential Sexual Abuse Incidents           Ty Taylor  

B.     Comments from the Board of Directors Will Be Heard           Nick Kouklis 
 
C.     Next Meeting:                               Nick Kouklis    
         Thursday, April 21, 2022 
         10:30 a.m. 
         Room 204, 2nd  Floor – Larry E. Reider Education Center 
         2000 K Street, Bakersfield, CA  93301 
 
D.      Adjournment                                            Nick Kouklis 
 
             Moved___________________2nd___________________ 

             Yes______No______Abstain______Roll Call Vote______ 

 

 

3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Governing Board of the SISC II 
JPA can be inspected at the following address during normal business hours at: 

2000 K Street, Bakersfield, CA.  93301 
For more information regarding how, to whom, and when a request for disability-related modification or accommodation, 

including auxiliary aids or services, may be made by a person with a disability who requires a modification or 
accommodation to participate in the public meeting, please contact Kristy Comstock at 661-636-4682 or 

krcomstock@kern.org 
 

*The number of Board Members needed to form a quorum for this meeting is eight 
 
 
 
 
 

4

mailto:krcomstock@kern.org


PROPERTY & LIABILITY TERMINOLOGY 
 
1. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) - A federal act designed to set standards to remove the barriers to employment, transportation, 

public accommodations, public services, and telecommunications that exist for those members of our society who have physical disabilities.  
The act encompasses aspects of everyday life and generates wide ranging implications for almost every business or service. 

 
 
2. CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATIONS - The term applied to tort claims involving issues of sexual harassment; wrongful termination; employment, age, 

gender or race discrimination; ADA; employment harassment.  If Plaintiff prevails, even partially, this type of case entitles plaintiff to also 
collect attorney fees. 

 
 
 
3. CLAIM TYPES – The internal coding systems for claims includes: 
  
 ABI – Auto Bodily Injury                  BM – Boiler/Machinery                       LPD–Liability Property Damage 
 ACL – Auto Collision                         CF – Crime/Fidelity                               P - Property 
 ACP – Auto Comprehension            LBI – Liability Bodily Injury                 SE – Special Education 
 AGK – Auto Garage Keepers            LPI – Liability Personal Injury 
 APD – Auto Property Damage 

 
 
4. COMPARATIVE NEGLIGENCE - A more modern system of allocating damages between two or more persons than the method of contributory 

negligence.  Under comparative negligence, the damages collectible in relation to another person are diminished in proportion to one's degree 
of negligence.  In most instances, damages cannot be collected at all if the claimant's negligence were greater than that of the other party.  
Currently, in a few instances, the courts have awarded both parties damages as a percent of the total damages, depending on respective 
degrees of fault. 

 
 
5. DECLARATORY RELIEF ACTION - Remedy for the determination of a judicial controversy where a plaintiff or defendant is in doubt as to their 

legal rights.  No consequential relief is awarded. 
 
 
6. ERRORS  AND OMISSIONS (E&O) - A form of Professional Liability insurance which provides coverage for mistakes made in a profession not 

involved with the human body (lawyers, architects, engineers) or for mistakes made in a service business (insurance, real estate, and others).  
Also a form of coverage for financial institutions protecting against loss to lending institutions which fail to effect insurance coverage. 

 
7. HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT - A contractual arrangement whereby one party assumes the liability  

Inherent in a situation, thereby relieving the other party of responsibility.  Such agreements are typically found in leases and easements and 
construction contract agreements.  Agreement or contract in which one party agrees to hold the other without responsibility for damage or 
other liability arising out of the transaction involved. 

 
8. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ACTION - Legal action filed for prohibitive or equitable relief.  An action filed to forbid an act or to restrain someone from 

continuing an act which is considered unjust or injurious. 
 
9. MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT - Rule of civil procedure permitting either side in a civil suit to move for dismissal when it is believed that 

there is no genuine issue of material fact that would allow the other side to prevail as a matter of law.  The "motion" may include all or part of 
a claim. 

  
10. PERSONAL INJURY - Injury, other than bodily injury, results from oral or written communication. 
 
11. PUNITIVE DAMAGES (Exemplary) - Damages awarded separately and in addition to compensatory damages, usually on account of malicious 

or wanton misconduct, to serve as a punishment for the wrongdoer and, possibly, as a deterrent to others.  Sometimes referred to as 
"exemplary damages" when intended to "make an example" of the wrongdoer.  By law, government entities are immune from punitive 
damages.  

 
12. SUBROGATION - In insurance, the substitution of one party (insurer) for another party (insured) to pursue any rights the insured may have 

against a third party liable for a loss paid by the insurer. 
 

13. TORT - A legal wrong arising from a breach of duty fixed by law, except under contract, causing injury to persons or property and redressible 
by legal action for damages.  Government entities are ruled by the Tort Claims Act. 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of SISC II Property and Liability Program was called to order by 
Director Kouklis at 10:31 a.m. on Thursday, February 24, 2022 in room 204, 2nd floor of the Larry E. Reider Building, 
2000 K Street, Bakersfield, California 93301. The following individuals were in attendance: 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: ALTERNATES PRESENT: OTHERS PRESENT: 
Nick Kouklis Steve Martinez Kim Sloan 
Ty Bryson  Megan Hanson 
Paul Miller  Kristy Comstock 
S. Aaron Resendez  Rich Edwards 
Katie Russell  Fred Bayles 
Bill Ridgeway  Robert Kretzmer 
Jackie Martin  Ty Taylor 
Eva Chavez 
Robert Hughes 

 Ryan Bourget 
Roxann D. Webb 
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

PROPERTY AND LIABILITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 24, 2022 
10:30 A.M. 

 

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

With respect to the claim filed by Merced River School District after discussion, motion was made by Director Chavez, 
seconded by Director Resendez and by roll call vote of 10-0-0 the board approved the payment of $52,363.00 for 
replacement of a portable classroom unit damaged by water. 

With respect to the claim filed by Santa Barbara Unified School District after discussion, motion was made by Director 
Russell, seconded by Director Miller and by roll call vote of 10-0-0 the board approved the payment of $40,269.83 for 
replacement of athletic equipment and repairs to school gym damaged by high winds. 

With respect to the claim filed by Jason Anderson against Palmdale School District after discussion, motion was made 
by Director Chavez, seconded by Director Ridgeway and by roll call vote of 10-0-0 the board approved the payment of 
$230,000.00 plus court costs for the settlement of this claim with Jason Anderson.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Comment     
None 
 

Consent Agenda 
Motion was made by Director Ridgeway, seconded by Director Hughes and by roll call vote of 10-Yes, 0-No, and 0 
Abstention (10-0-0) to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Minutes       
Approval of Minutes for January 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
Student Insurance and Tackle Football Claims     
Approval of payment of Student Insurance Claims in the Amount of $61,916.81 and Tackle Football Claims in the 
Amount of $1,732.98 for the month of January 2022. 

 

Action Items 
 
Report of Property and Liability Claims – January 2022 
Robert Kretzmer presented the Report of Property and Liability Claims.  There were 23 new claims, 33 claims were 
closed and no claims reopened in January, resulting in 372 pending claims. Robert reviewed the check register for 
January 2022, reporting on four checks that were in excess of $25,000.00. After discussion, motion was made by 
Director Chavez, seconded by Director Russell and by roll call vote of 10-0-0, approving payment of Property and 
Liability Claims in the amount of $1,663,122.45 for the month of January 2022. 
 
Financial Report   
Kim Sloan reviewed with the Board the Financial Report for the period ending January 31, 2022. Kim reported the LAIF 
rate for the month of January 2022 increased to 0.23% from last month at 0.21%. After discussion, motion was made 
by Director Bryson, seconded by Director Miller and by roll call vote of 10-0-0, approving the Financial Reports as 
submitted. 
 
 
 
 

Closed Session – Property & Liability Claims 
The Board went into closed session at 10:32 a.m.  
 
Reconvene to Open Session 
The Board reconvened into open session at 10:52 a.m. 
 
Director Kouklis reported on the following cases:  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information and Discussion Items 
 
Review of the Cyber Pilot Program 
Robert Kretzmer discussed the next steps of the Cyber Pilot Program with the Board. A survey will be sent out to see 
what can be improved and will be reported back to the Board. He also included several articles for the board to read.  
 
Discussion on School Connected Organizations Coverage 
Robert Kretzmer reviewed insurance coverage for school-connected organizations through United States Liability 
Insurance Co Inc. (USLI).  
 
Update on COVID-19 Issues 
Robert Kretzmer informed the Board that a memo has been posted on the website to help districts navigate through 
changing masking issues. 
 
Review of Property Claims Report 
Ryan Bourget reviewed the property claims report with the Board.  
 
Review of Liability Claims Report 
Ty Taylor reviewed the liability claims report with the Board. 
 
Review of Auto Claims Report 
Roxann D. Webb reviewed the auto claims report with the Board. 
 
Review of Student Insurance Claims Report 
Robert Kretzmer reviewed the student insurance claims report with the Board. 
 
Comments from the Board of Directors 
Director Martin and Director Russell commented on masking issues at their districts. Director Kouklis informed the 
board that the nomination ballots will be sent out on March 1st via email by Kristy Comstock. He also informed the 
board that the Property & Liability rates for the next fiscal year will be reviewed at next month’s board meeting.  
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business to come before the Board, motion was made by Director Chavez, seconded by 
Director Miller and by roll call vote of 10-0-0, adjourning the meeting at 11:53 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting 
The next meeting of the Board of Directors will be held Thursday, March 17th at 10:30 a.m. in Room 204 on the 2nd 
Floor-Larry E. Reider Education Center, 2000 K Street, Bakersfield, CA 93301 
 
                                                                                            

                      
________________________________________________________________________                   
Bill Ridgeway, Secretary 

 

8



STUDENT SUPPLEMENTAL TACKLE
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOOTBALL

Opened 52 0 2
Closed 6 0 0
Events 11 0 0

Total Open
  & Event claims 499 0 41

Amount Paid 27,467.08$         -$                      2,811.74$             

Credit (299.50)$           -$                      -$                     

Net Paid Current Month 27,167.58$         -$                      2,811.74$             

`
Net Paid YTD 266,687.96$       -$                      15,468.16$           

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY
February 2022

9



FEBRUARY 2022

FILES RE-OPENED 0
FILES OPENED 40
FILES CLOSED 56
TOTAL PENDING CLAIMS 357

PENDING INDEMNITY RESERVES $25,883,247.15
PENDING EXPENSE RESERVES $5,602,447.30

TOTAL RESERVES $31,485,694.45

INDEMNITY PAID, CURRENT MONTH $186,866.63
EXPENSES  PAID, CURRENT MONTH $204,405.90

SUB-TOTAL $391,272.53

PRIOR MONTH VOIDS ($8,359.11)
RECOVERIES & COLLECTIONS ($29,771.09)
REFUNDS/ADJUSTMENTS $0.00

NET PAID CURRENT MONTH $353,142.33

INDEMNITY PAID YEAR-TO-DATE $5,281,456.91
EXPENSES  PAID YEAR-TO-DATE $3,450,944.20

SUB-TOTAL $8,732,401.11

CREDITS  YEAR-TO-DATE ($183,241.93)
RECOVERY YEAR-TO-DATE ($699,859.62)
REFUNDS YEAR-TO-DATE ($15,831.17)

SUB-TOTAL ($898,932.72)

NET PAID YEAR-TO-DATE $7,833,468.39

YEAR-TO-DATE FROM CLAIM LOSS MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 7,833,468.39
YEAR-TO-DATE FROM THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 7,825,484.27
YEAR-TO-DATE FROM THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT(CONSULTING) 172,616.87
YEAR-TO-DATE NET DIFFERENCE (164,632.75)
2020/2021 Recovery - will remain all year 131,056.99
June stale date posted in Ivos in July- will remain all year 40,000.00
Payment to Alliance 44772506 and Ventiv 44772506 3,312.00
AON Global Risk warrant 44764376 issued in Sep 5,200.00
Payment to Alliance 44778121 12.00
Payment to Alliance 44784317 372.00
Feb stale dated to be posted in Ivos in Mar (15,320.24)

164,632.75
YEAR-TO-DATE DIFFERENCE (0.00)

SISC II
CLAIM AND LOSS MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

10



11



12



13



14



15



BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE
REVENUES

8660.00 Interest-County Treasurer $207,821.00 $256,256.44

8660.03          LAIF $15.00 $7.20

8660.04          Investments $253,058.00 ($252,304.19)

8660.05          Bank $4,200.00 $2,024.10

8674.02 Premiums-Prop & Liab $40,323,898.00 $27,766,701.37

8674.12          Student Ins $1,266,053.00 $844,478.46

8674.13          Tackle Football $18,000.00 $23,100.00

8674.14          Special Ed Defense $489,449.00 $443,924.00

8674.15          Supp Student Ins $1,000.00 $700.00

8699.06          Administrative Fees $100.00 $0.00

TOTAL REVENUES $42,563,594.00 $29,084,887.38

EXPENSES

4300.00 Supplies $500.00 $148.97

5200.00 Travel/Conference $5,000.00 $0.00

5300.00 Dues and Memberships $75,000.00 $167,753.31

5450.01 Insurance-Property & Fire $8,240,886.00 $4,824,449.65

5450.02 Boiler & Machinery $243,667.00 $160,808.00

5450.04 Crime $74,671.00 $47,452.00

5450.06 Excess Liability $5,700,000.00 $3,424,261.67

5450.17 Data Compromise $118,875.00 $198,465.54

5450.18 Concussion Coverage $27,000.00 $19,125.00

5450.19 Terrorism $35,627.00 $15,976.02

5800.00 Miscellaneous $500.00 $0.00

5800.02 Audit $13,090.00 $12,840.00

5800.08 Safety Incentive Projects $46,120.00 $0.00

5800.10 Consulting $161,750.00 $172,616.87

5800.15 Property Appraisals $55,484.00 $19,100.00

5800.32 Bank Fees $4,100.00 $1,870.28

5800.50 Administration - KCSOS $3,371,246.00 $2,156,894.85

5800.55 Student Ins Claims $823,000.00 $266,665.89

5800.56 Tackle FB Claims $18,000.00 $15,588.16

5800.57 Supp Student Ins Claims $1,000.00 $0.00

5800.58 Spec Ed VCP $489,449.00 $0.00

5800.66 Property Claims $1,983,299.00 $600,145.02

5800.67 Liability Claims $11,555,373.00 $6,452,628.88

5800.69 Auto Claims $1,836,064.00 $253,511.37

5800.90 Bill Review $12,000.00 $1,214.33

5800.94 Other Distributions $0.00 $0.00

5800.95 Unpaid Claims Liab Adj $2,000,000.00 $13,243,072.70

TOTAL EXPENSES $36,891,701.00 $32,054,588.51

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $5,671,893.00 ($2,969,701.13)

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING $24,433,654.29 $24,433,654.29

NET ASSETS - ENDING $30,105,547.29 $21,463,953.16

SISC II

INCOME STATEMENT

FEBRUARY 2022

CURRENT MONTH

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$23.36

$3,512,061.00

$105,560.00

$60.00

$0.00

$100.00

$0.00

$3,617,804.36

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$723,374.00

$20,101.00

$5,932.00

$428,032.00

$3,330.98

$2,250.00

$4,547.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$5,267.50

$0.00

$0.00

$261,125.48

$27,445.01

$2,811.74

$0.00

$0.00

$104,795.61

$185,247.51

$44,492.83

$1,891.29

$0.00

$12,076,406.00

$13,897,049.95

($10,279,245.59)

$31,743,198.75

$21,463,953.16

16



July 1, 2021
BALANCE

ASSETS

9110.00 Cash in County Treasury $25,364,340.57

9120.02 Bank Account-Claims Fund $594,564.73

9130.00 Revolving Fund $1,500.00

9150.01 Local Agency Investment Fund $6,065.97

9150.03 Investments $44,975,619.21

9200.00 Accounts Receivable $823,405.71

9330.00 Prepaid Insurance $3,803,697.00

TOTAL ASSETS $75,569,193.19

LIABILITIES

9500.00 Current Liabilities $856,648.90

9650.00 Deferred Income $0.00

9668.00 Unpd Clms Liab (90% Conf Lvl) $50,278,890.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES $51,135,538.90

NET ASSETS - Funding Stabilization Reserves $24,433,654.29

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $75,569,193.19

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

PREPARED BY:  Nancy Russo

SISC II

BALANCE SHEET

February 28, 2022

February 28, 2022
BALANCE

$35,184,175.75

$2,022,189.96

$1,500.00

$6,078.12

$52,723,315.02

$610,267.70

$9,188,762.00

$99,736,288.55

$261,135.48

$14,489,237.21

$63,521,962.70

$78,272,335.39

$21,463,953.16

$99,736,288.55

17



SISC II
Investments

February 28, 2022

24-HOUR LIQUID FUNDS

SISC II maintains much of its cash in the Kern County Treasury and Local Agency Investment Fund.  Both agencies pool these

funds with those of other entities in the state.  These pooled funds are carried at cost which approximates market value.

AGENCY BALANCE RETURN PERIOD DATES

COUNTY OF KERN $35,184,175.75 0.84% LAST QUARTER OCT-DEC 2021

1.53% 5 YEAR AVERAGE JAN 2017-DEC 2021

LOCAL AGENCY 

INVESTMENT FUND $6,078.12 0.28% CURRENT MONTH February, 2022

0.23% LAST QUARTER OCT-DEC 2021

1.40% 5 YEAR AVERAGE JAN 2017-DEC 2021

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS

The investment securities portfolio is comprised of securities carried at fair market value.  

The fair market value of the investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2021 was:

MARKET QUARTERLY ANNUALIZED

INVESTMENT FIRM VALUE RETURN RETURN PERIOD DATES

REINHART PARTNERS $25,219,686.00 -0.60% -2.39% LAST QUARTER OCT-DEC 2021

(SISC INVESTMENT POOL) 1.47% 5 YEAR AVERAGE JAN 2017-DEC 2021

0.84% YIELD TO MATURITY AS OF DEC 31, 2021

WELLS FARGO ADVISORS $19,503,629.02 -0.51% -2.02% LAST QUARTER OCT-DEC 2021

(RICH EDWARDS) 1.38% 5 YEAR AVERAGE JAN 2017-DEC 2021

0.54% YIELD TO MATURITY AS OF DEC 31, 2021

$44,723,315.02

5-YEAR HISTORY OF RETURNS - ANNUALIZED

Quarter Ending: RICH COMBINED WEIGHTED

Co of Kern LAIF INVESTMENT POOL WELLS FARGO AVERAGE RETURN

12/31/2021 0.84% 0.23% -2.39% -2.02% -0.55%

9/30/2021 1.24% 0.24% -0.20% 0.26% 0.69%

6/30/2021 1.00% 0.33% 0.80% 0.00% 0.65%

3/31/2021 1.07% 0.44% -1.86% -0.90% -0.47%

12/31/2020 1.16% 0.63% 0.18% 0.55% 0.72%

9/30/2020 1.30% 0.84% 0.43% 0.40% 0.83%

6/30/2020 1.70% 1.47% 2.89% 4.28% 3.23%

3/31/2020 2.10% 2.03% 8.05% 3.01% 5.13%

12/31/2019 2.13% 2.29% 1.12% 2.22% 1.80%

9/30/2019 2.03% 2.45% 2.85% 2.84% 2.49%

6/30/2019 2.03% 2.57% 4.84% 4.81% 4.48%

3/31/2019 2.12% 2.55% 4.25% 4.19% 3.81%

12/31/2018 1.92% 2.40% 4.30% 3.41% 3.24%

9/30/2018 1.77% 2.16% 1.09% 1.95% 1.59%

6/30/2018 1.69% 1.90% 1.00% 0.86% 0.98%

3/31/2018 1.51% 1.51% -1.16% -1.32% -0.95%

12/31/2017 1.38% 1.20% -0.38% -1.19% -0.21%

9/30/2017 1.32% 1.07% 1.01% 1.62% 1.29%

6/30/2017 1.20% 0.93% 1.49% 1.05% 1.30%

3/31/2017 1.15% 0.78% 1.07% 1.68% 1.32%

5-Yr Average 1.53% 1.40% 1.47% 1.38% 1.57%
18



 19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26




